1	MINUTES OF MEETING				
2 3 4 5 6	Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the meeting is advised that the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.				
7					
8	FISHHAWK RANCH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT				
9					
10	The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fishhawk Ranch Community				
11	Development District was held on Wednesday, November 9, 2022, at 6:31 p.m. at the				
12	Palmetto Club, located 17004 Do	orman Road, Lithia, Florida 33547.			
13					
14	Present and constituting a quorun	n were:			
15 16	Robert Kneusel	Board Supervisor, Chairman			
10	Thomas Avino	Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman			
17	Terrie Morrison	Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary			
19	Dawn Turner	Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary			
20	Bawii Failler	Deard Supervicer, / teoletant Coordary			
21	Also present were:				
22					
23	Eric Dailey*	District Manager, Halifax Solutions, LLC.			
24	Lauren Gentry*	District Counsel, KE Law Group, PLLC			
25	Grace Kobitter*	District Counsel, KE Law Group, PLLC			
26	Holly Quigley	Community Director, Fishhawk Ranch CDD			
27	Erin Williams	Assistant Community Director, Fishhawk Ranch CDD			
28	Josh Croy	Operations Manager, Fishhawk Ranch CDD			
29	Justin Foley	Account Manager, Juniper Landscaping			
30	Deanna Vaughn	Assistant Community Manager, Grand Manors			
31	Terry Payton	CEO, A Bales Security Agency, Inc.			
32	<b>A</b> 11				
33	Audience	None			
34					
35		Note (*) – Attended via conference call.			
36 27					
37 38	FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS	Call to Order and Roll Call			
30 39					
39 40	Mr Dailey called the mee	eting to order and conducted roll call, confirming that a			
40 41	quorum was present.				
42	1.2.2				
43					
44	SECOND ORDER OF BUSINES	S Audience Comments			
45					
46	No audience was present so no comments were made.				

\_

47 48	THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS	Consideration Juniper	of	Proposals	from		
49 50 51 52 53	The Board asked to address Business Item A, Consideration of Proposals from Juniper since Mr. Foley as in attendance. Mr. Croy and Mr. Foley reviewed the proposal with the Board, and they discussed.						
54 55 56	The Board asked that the Starling playground proposal be tabled, and more options be looked at with Mr. Brletic.						
57 58 59 60	The Board removed the Sora Trace proposal until the landscape ownership and maintenance agreement with the FishHawk Ranch HOA can be reviewed by District Counsel.						
61 62 63	The Board decided to go with the stand the upgraded option of the Sunpatiens.	ard annual rotatio	ns fo	r next year a	and not		
64 65 66 67	The Board removed the proposal from Ameri-Tree for the removal of the Braziliar Pepper Tree requested by a resident in Sandhill Villas and stated if the resident wants i removed from District property, they can pay the District the \$5,000.00 to have it done.						
68 69 70 71	On a Motion by Mr. Avino, seconded by Ms. Turner, with all in favor, the Board approved proposals #179655, #179659, #184407, #184452, #184456, #184458, #185184, and #186566 from Juniper Landscaping and proposal #439913 from Ameri-Tree totaling \$91,225.58, for Fishhawk Ranch Community Development District.						
72 73 74 75	Mr. Kneusel and Mr. Avino thanked Mr. Foley for his hard work and the improvement in the community since he has taken over as the Juniper point of contact.						
76 77 78	The Board had no further questions or meeting.	r comments for N	1r. Fo	oley, so he l	eft the		
79 80 81	FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Consideration Bales Security A		•	om A		
82 83 84 85 86	Ms. Quigley asked if the Board wo Consideration of Proposal from A Bales Secur to discuss. The Board agreed and Mr. Payton the Board.	rity Agency since	Mr. F	ayton was p	present		
87 88 89 90 91 92	The Board discussed the proposal and a Signal 88. Mr. Dailey stated it was a thirty-day		rmina	ation notice v	was for		

**Staff Reports** 

Ranch Community Development District. 96 97 98 99 Development District. 100 101 102 FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 103 104 A. District Counsel 105 106 Ms. Gentry stated she had no items to address other than the ones that are on the agenda at this time. 109 B. District Manager 110 111 Mr. Dailey asked the Board if they had any questions or comments on the Action 112 Item List as presented. 113 114 Mr. Dailey reminded the Board the next meeting will be on Wednesday, November 115 30, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. at the Palmetto Club. 116 117 Mr. Dailey stated he is working with District Counsel on an agreement for the HOA 118 cameras installed on the monument signage along with a review of the landscaping 119 maintenance agreement. 120 121 122 Mr. Dailey stated Mr. Brletic and Ms. Kilinski are working to identify some additional property parcels that need to be deeded to the FishHawk Ridge HOA and requesting 123 maintenance easements for access to the District ponds and trails. 124 125

#### C. Community Director 126

128 Ms. Quigley asked the Board if they had any questions regarding her report as presented in the agenda. 129

130 Ms. Quigley asked the Board how they wished to proceed regarding upgrading to 131 District standards the 171 street signs Hillsborough County recently installed on 132 Osprey Ridge Dr Ms. Quigley stated the cost of each upgraded sign is around 133 134 \$1,000.00 so we are looking at total unbudgeted cost to complete this project of \$171,000.00. The Board asked that Ms. Quigley identify and provide a 135 recommendation and cost to possibly upgrade only those closest to home fronts and 136

94 95

93

On a Motion by Ms. Turner, seconded by Mr. Avino, with all in favor, the Board approved the proposal from A Bales Security Agency for security services subject to review and drafting of an agreement by District Counsel, for Fishhawk Ranch Community

# On a Motion by Mr. Avino, seconded by Ms. Turner, with all in favor, the Board approved

the thirty-day (30) notice of termination of security services for Signal 88, for Fishhawk

107 108

127

137 138	areas where the difference between the current signage and the newly installed signage stands out as being aesthetically unsightly.				
139 140	Ma. Quidlow undeted the Reard on issues with appear to the Opprov Club parking lat				
140	Ms. Quigley updated the Board on issues with access to the Osprey Club parking lot				
141	when Bevis Elementary school lets out. Ms. Quigley reminded the Board that prior to COVID-19 the parking lot was closed each day for approximately 15 minutes for				
142	safety reasons at school dismissal time.				
144	salety reasons at school distrissal time.				
145	On a Motion by Mr. Avino, seconded by Ms. Turner, with all in favor, the Board authorized				
146	District Staff to close any District owned parking lot as needed due to safety concerns,				
147	capacity issues, events, etc., for Fishhawk Ranch Community Development District.				
148					
149	Ms. Quigley asked if Ms. Parvin was allowed to exceed the Special Events budget				
150	line of \$40,000.00 if the revenue taken in from them exceeded that budget. The Board				
151	stated not at this time and to work within the approved budget.				
152	D. Oneretiene Menerer				
153	D. Operations Manager				
154 155	Mr. Croy stated that A&B Aquatics started this week and have been onsite each day				
155	as promised.				
150	as promised.				
158	Mr. Croy stated that Ameri-Tree had three more tree to remove, and Juniper will have				
159	twenty more trees to remove, all from Hurricane Ian, with the proposal approved				
160	tonight.				
161					
162	E. Tennis Club Report				
163	•				
164	Ms. Williams stated that Mr. Croy had the suggestion box hung this afternoon.				
165					
166	Ms. Williams stated she is still working on a date to get Har-Tru out to survey the				
167	courts and train the staff.				
168					
169	Ms. Williams stated she plans to go look at Arbor Green CDD on December 7 to				
170	review their tennis operation.				
171					
172	Ms. Williams stated she is working with Ms. Quigley to wrap up the final payments				
173	due to Tipsarevic.				
174					
175 176	SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Juniper Contract				
176 177	SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Juniper Contract Extension to September 30, 2023				
177					
178	Mr. Dailey presented the contract extension from Juniper Landscaping that will get				
180	them lined up with the end of this fiscal year.				
100					

\_

On a Motion by Ms. Morrison, seconded by Ms. Turner, with all in favor, the Board approved the Contract Extension with Juniper Landscaping through September 30, 2023, for Fishhawk Ranch Community Development District.				
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Consideration of Proposals from Specialty Surfaces for Splash Pad			
Mr. Croy presented the proposal option	s from Specialty Surfaces.			
On a Motion by Mr. Avino, seconded by Ms. Morrison, with all in favor, the Board appro the proposal from Specialty Surfaces for pad repairs for \$1,275.00, for Fishhawk Ra Community Development District.				
EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Consideration of Proposals for Fence Repairs			
Mr. Croy presented the proposal options from MozArt Designs and West Florida Fence for fence repairs to various amenity facilities.				
On a Motion by Ms. Morrison, seconded by Ms. Turner, with all in favor, the Board approved the proposal from MozArt Designs for fence repairs for \$14,050.00, for Fishhawk Ranch Community Development District.				
- , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,				
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Consideration of Proposal from Spectra Flooring for Tennis Club			
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Consideration of Proposal from			
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ms. Quigley presented the proposal from club carpet for \$10,351.79.	Consideration of Proposal from Spectra Flooring for Tennis Club			
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ms. Quigley presented the proposal from club carpet for \$10,351.79. The Board discussed the quality of the t	Consideration of Proposal from Spectra Flooring for Tennis Club m Spectra Flooring for replacing the tennis			
	Fishhawk Ranch Community Development District   SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Mr. Croy presented the proposal option   On a Motion by Mr. Avino, seconded by Ms. Mothe proposal from Specialty Surfaces for pad Community Development District.   EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Mr. Croy presented the proposal option   Fishhawk Ranch OF BUSINESS   Mr. Croy presented the proposal option   Fence for fence repairs to various amenity fac   On a Motion by Ms. Morrison, seconded by Ms.			

223 On a Motion by Ms. Morrison, seconded by Mr. Avino, with all in favor, the Board accepted the Arbitrage Report for the Series 2020 Bonds, for Fishhawk Ranch Community 224 225 **Development District.** 226 227 **ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS** Discussion on Workshop Items for 228 November 2022 Board of 229 30, 230 Supervisors Meeting 231 Ms. Morrison suggested the idea of two activities for the November Workshop: (1) 232 having each Board Supervisor identify what they felt were the top three responsibilities of 233 the Board, and (2) having someone with an outside viewpoint and experience with other 234 Districts speak to the Board about how things have changed in today's times and how 235 236 Boards have successfully adapted to functioning in today's environment. Ms. Morrison suggested having Mr. Pete Williams come and speak since he has a history with 237 Fishhawk Ranch, and he is very knowledgeable in the industry. 238 239 The Board discussed possibly having District Counsel provide them with names of 240 other comparable Districts so they can see how they operate and gain insights that might 241 suggest best practices for efficient and effective Board and District practices. 242 243 The Board decided to wait on a workshop until they are ready to discuss both the 244 tennis club and Palmetto Club at that same time. 245 246 Ms. Morrison reviewed her draft community survey and asked the Board to send 247 their comments to Mr. Dailey to be shared with her. 248 249 250 TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS **Supervisors Request** 251 252 Mr. Dailey asked if there were any Supervisor Requests. 253 254 255 Ms. Morrison stated she has enjoyed working with Ms. Williams on the tennis club and thanked her for her efforts to create and track metrics and data that will ultimately 256 allow the Board to make the best possible informed decision regarding the future 257 258 operation of the tennis club. 259 Ms. Turner stated District Counsel had drafted a contract addendum for Puff N' 260 261 Stuff to use that would better protect the District when used by their clients. Mr. Kneusel stated he saw that PNS was pushing back on the addendum. Ms. Gentry stated Mr. Dailey 262 is having a call with them this week to discuss. 263 264 Mr. Kneusel stated he and his wife have taken up pickleball and will keep the Board 265 up to date on how things are going with the usage of the new courts. 266 267 268

269 270	THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Adjournment
271 272	On a Motion by Mr. Avino, seconded by Mthe meeting at 8:55 p.m., for Fishhawk R	Ns. Turner with all in favor, the Board adjourned anch Community Development District.
273 274 275 276	Secretary/Assistant Secretary	Chairman/ Vice Chairman